ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 9, 2008
9:03 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy Wl son, Chair
Represent ati ve Bob Roses, Vice Chair
Representati ve Anna Faircl ough
Representati ve Wes Kel |l er
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssna
Representative Berta Gardner

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 337

"An Act establishing the Alaska Health Care Conmi ssion and the
Al aska health care information office; relating to health care
planning and information; repealing the certificate of need
program for certain health care facilities and relating to the
repeal ; annul | i ng certain regul ati ons required for
i npl enentation of the certificate of need program for certain
health care facilities; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 345

"An Act anending the certificate of need requirenents to exclude
expenditures for diagnostic imaging equipnent in certain
ci rcunst ances. "

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 337

SHORT TITLE: HEALTH CARE: PLAN COWMM SSI ON FACI LI TI ES
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNCR

01/ 22/ 08 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 22/ 08 (H HES, FIN

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -1- February 9, 2008



01/ 24/ 08 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

01/ 24/ 08 (H Heard & Held

01/ 24/ 08 (H) M NUTE( HES)

01/ 31/ 08 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

01/ 31/ 08 (H Heard & Hel d -- Assi gned
Subconmi tt ee

01/ 31/ 08 (H M NUTE( HES)

02/ 09/ 08 (H) HES AT 9: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 345

SHORT TI TLE: MEDI CAL FACI LI TY CERTI FI CATE OF NEED
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) KELLY

01/ 30/ 08 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 30/ 08 (H) HES, FIN
02/ 09/ 08 (H) HES AT 9: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

KARLEEN JACKSQN, Comm ssi oner
Department of Health and Social Services
Juneau, Al aska

to

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 337 on behal f of the governor.

JAY BUTLER, M D.; Chief Medical Oficer
Depart nent of Health and Social Services
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in the presentation of HB 337.

JEANNI NE HI NMAN, Health Care Legal Consultant
Advanced Medical Centers of Al aska

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 337.

NORMAN STEPHENS, Chief Executive Oficer

Mat - Su Regi onal Health Care Center

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 337.

PAULA EASLEY, Menber

Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of Directors
Depart nent of Revenue

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 337 on

behal f of the Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority (AVHTA).

ROB GOULD, Chief Financial Oficer; Head of Operations

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 2- February 9, 2008



Fai r banks Menorial Hospital and Denali Center
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 337.

BOB URATA, M D.; Menber

Bartlett Regional Hospital Board of Drectors; Health Care
Strategi es Pl anni ng Counci l

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 337.

ROB BETIT, Chief Executive Oficer

Al aska State Hospital and Nursing Home Associ ati on ( ASHNHA)
Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 337,
representing ASHNHA, and answered a question representing
hi msel f.

JOEL G LBERTSON, Representative

Provi dence Health & Services Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 337.

REPRESENTATI VE M KE KELLY

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 345 as the sponsor.

DEREK M LLER, Staff

to Representative Mke Kelly

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented the sectional analysis for HB
345, Version E, on behalf of Representative Kelly, sponsor.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R PEGGY WLSON call ed the House Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Conmttee neeting to order at 9:03:38 AM
Representatives WIson, Roses, Seaton, Gardner, Fairclough, and
Keller were present at the call to order. Representative C ssna
arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 337- HEALTH CARE: PLAN COWM SSI QV FACI LI Tl ES

9: 05: 18 AM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 3- February 9, 2008



CHAI R WLSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 337, "An Act establishing the Alaska Health Care
Comm ssion and the Alaska health <care information office;

relating to health care planning and information; repealing the
certificate of need program for certain health care facilities
and relating to the repeal; annulling certain regulations
required for inplenentation of the certificate of need program
for certain health care facilities; and providing for an
effective date."

9:05:51 AM
CHAI R W LSON descri bed the procedure for w tness testinony.
9: 07: 28 AM

KARLEEN JACKSON, Comm ssioner, Departnment of Health and Soci al
Services, informed the conmittee that the mssion of the
Departnment of Health and Social Services (DHSS) is to pronote
and protect the health and well being of Al askans. House Bill
337, The Health Care Transparency Act, acconplishes this because
it gives Alaskans the tools to responsibly manage their health
care. Two itens form the basis of this act: a health care
committee to oversee health planning and develop a health care
plan, and the creation of an easily accessible and updated
website to provide evidence based price and quality information
about health care providers and services. The information
office would begin work on July 1, 2008, to consolidate all of
the data on health care facilities for Al aska consuners.

9:09: 52 AM

COWMM SSI ONER JACKSON continued to explain that the third part of
HB 337 was the repeal of the Certificate of Need (CON) program
She observed that the health council addressed the underlying
purpose of the CON program which was to reduce the cost of
health care and inprove access to health care for Al askans.
Comm ssi oner Jackson acknowl edged that the Alaska Soci al
Services Certificate of Need Negotiated Rule Making Conmmttee
did not recommend repealing the CON program however, it did
review several factors that suggested a higher |evel of
enforcenent by the DHSS was warranted if the program was to
conti nue.

9:11: 36 AM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 4- February 9, 2008



COMM SSI ONER JACKSON recal l ed that the CON program was a federa
mandate in the 1970's. Since that time, market forces have
changed, along wth the health care industry. Today, with the
diversity of services and the variety of technol ogical
approaches, many states have nodified or repealed CON | aws. The
negotiated rule making commttee recomended that the state
collect additional data on the CON program Comm ssi oner
Jackson opined that collecting data for the consumer website,
instead, wll help Al askans becone nore infornmed consuners and
nore responsible for their health care. The negotiated rule
maki ng committee al so recommended that the voices of health care
consuners need to be heard; in fact, the governor's bill focuses
on health care from the consuner's perspective. This is one of
the reasons for the wde diversity of opinions on the bill. She
then assured the commttee that the conmttee substitute has
addressed the needs of small community hospitals by the
exception of residential psychiatric treatnment centers, nursing
homes, and critical access hospitals fromrepeal of the CO\

9:15:16 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER observed that the conplexity of the issue

warrants a conplete study of CON laws in Alaska, as the
materials available to the commttee are from ot her states. She

stated her support for a data driven, independent, quality
study, perhaps by the new health care conm ssion, but would be
unable to support a bill of any kind based on her current
know edge.
9:17: 27 AM

JAY BUTLER, MD.; Chief Medical Oficer, Departnent of Health
and Social Services, supported Representative Gardner's call for
additional study of the CON issue; however, he opined that the
new health care task force wll have too rmany other
responsibilities to conplete this additional task. He clarified
that one role of the health information office would be to
provide information on the prevention of disease and to
encourage personal health responsibility. Additional information
will be phased in as the feasibility and success of the program
al | ow. Dr. Butler described different uses of the information
system and stated that an infornmed patient is a healthier
patient. Finally, he commented that the content disclosed by
the health information office would create a hub for useful
advi ce for consuners.

9:20: 47 AM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 5- February 9, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER suggested that the University of Al aska
could facilitate a study of the CON program in Al aska and
i ndicated concern with elimnating or nmking mjor changes in
the current systemin the absence of data.

9:21:25 AM

CHAIR WLSON called the commttee's attention back to the first
and second parts of the bill.

9:21: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether the information that would be
required to be reported to the health information office under
HB 337, is now being required under a CON application.

COWM SSI ONER JACKSON answered that what is required for the CON
program is focused on the need to build a specific facility to
provide a service and the financial I npact on existing
facilities. Information for the health information office would
be focused on the consumer's perspective as to where services
are |located, at what cost, and the expected outcones.

9: 23: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether the DHSS would be ready to
gat her data and inplenent the provisions in the bill in July.

COWM SSI ONER JACKSON responded that on July 1, the information
office would start hiring staff and the comm ssion would begin
its work on the website. She estimted that data would be
posted on the website within one year.

9:24: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES encouraged the conmittee to create the
commi ssion prior to meking decisions on the other aspects of the
bill. The commssion could then address the many details
surrounding the information office and deal with the CON. This
issue has a tremendous anount of interest and affects health
care across t he state for provi ders and consuners.
Representative Roses opined that the nenbers of the conm ssion
will be best qualified to nmake these deci sions.

9:27:27 AM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 6- February 9, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA expressed her belief that a study of the
CON program in Alaska could be done simultaneously with the
formati on of the conm ssion.

9:28:41 AM

COWM SSI ONER JACKSON noted that fiscal considerations are the
reason that HB 337 contains three purposes. She cited the cost
i npact of outstanding lawsuits, in addition to the cost of the
CON program and pointed out that proceeding with the comm ssion
and the information office, w thout addressing the CON program
woul d have a significant fiscal inpact.

9:29: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES expressed his belief that concern over the
| awsuits should be set aside, as that should not be the driving
force behind the decisions that establish health care policy for
the citizens of the state.

9:30: 37 AM

COMM SSI ONER JACKSON re-stated that the issue with the law suits
is the cost and that the purpose of the programis to |lower the
cost of health care.

9:30: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether the fiscal inpact of the
|l awsuits on the DHSS is the dollar cost or the diversion of
r esour ces.

COW SSI ONER JACKSON sai d bot h
9:31: 32 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON r enar ked:

As | see it, Section 1 has you, the departnent,
charged with doing the health care plan. And t hat
woul dn't be the charge really of the comm ssion. So
I"'mtrying to figure out, if we would go forward with
Section 2 and establish the conm ssion, wthout having
the policy decision nmade for the transparency section,

then the commssion's role would be to, um
assess, through the full range of things that m ght
i nfluence costs in the state, and then cone back wth

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -7- February 9, 2008



a policy question. s that where we'd be if we
institute Section 1 wthout, the comm ssion, wthout
the policy choice being made by the |egislature?

9: 33: 02 AM

COWMM SSI ONER JACKSON asked Representati ve Seat on for
clarification of the question.

9:33:25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON further stated that, in the web base
program it appears that a policy choice would be nmade about the
responsibilities of the conmm ssion, but on page 3 it states
that "the commission is going to be |ooking at reconmendations
to foster developnment of statewide plan and to review facility
care information." He then asked whether Conm ssioner Jackson
saw any difference in the charge if the legislature only
institutes that as a policy.

COWM SSI ONER JACKSON answered that there would be differences if
the transparency piece was not there to focus on the consuner.
The health plan would then be focused on facilities, as it is
now, rather than the conparison of prices for the consuner.

9: 34: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON further asked whether the sections of the
bill could be broken apart to establish the comm ssion wthout
the information office. If so, would that affect the direction
of the bill.

COWM SSI ONER JACKSON stated that the conm ssion, wthout the
information office, wwuld not be able to inplenent its
recommendat i ons. There would not be the ability to inplenent

the policy decisions and make a direct connection to Al askans.

DR. BUTLER reiterated that, to begin the work of the conm ssion
without the tool of the health information office, could limt
its effectiveness.

9:36: 51 AM
CHAIR WLSON expressed her understanding that the health care
conmm ssion would evaluate health care, in Al aska on the whol e,

and make recommendations for inprovenents. The health care
information office would be responsible for providing the public

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 8- February 9, 2008



with information to allow individuals to make w se decisions
about their personal health care. She opined that the
responsibilities of the commssion and the information office
are not the sane.

COW SSI ONER JACKSON agr eed.

9:38:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether enacting the sections
separately would nean that the policy choice for the conmm ssion
can not include transparency for consuners.

9:39: 14 AM

CHAIR WLSON opined that the commssion and the information
office are two separate entities operating, for the nost part,
in two separate real ns.

9: 39: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON surm sed that doing one wthout the other
indicates that the comm ssion was tasked to bring forward a

pl an. The committee was not naking a policy decision that
consuners should have individual information; that was a policy
deci sion that the conmission wuld integrate into its

reconmendat i ons.
9:40:21 AM

CHAIR W LSON asked whether Representative Seaton was suggesting
putting everything into one.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON rel ated that the suggestion has been made
to only pass the comm ssion, without policy direction. He noted
that the commssion's plan may or nmay not have the transparency
focus and he wished to ensure that the conm ssion does have a
policy direction integrated into their charge.

9:41:57 AM

CHAIR WLSON recalled her experience on the governor's health
care council. She opined that the conm ssion would be an
extension  of the health care council and would make

recommendations that may be developed into policy by the
| egi sl ature. The formation of the health care information office

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 9- February 9, 2008



would be the result of policy decisions by the |egislature and
t he DHSS.

9:43: 52 AM

DR. BUTLER expressed his concern about splitting the information
of fice. The details of what the health information office does
should be part of the charge of the comm ssion, as the health
information office is answerable to the conmm ssion. Dr. Butler
opined that the comm ssion and the health information office
woul d not function well conpletely independent of one another.

9:44: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES called the commttee's attention to the
task of the commission as witten in the bill. The
responsibility of the DHSS is also established by the bill. He

opined that transparency is an overused term and that,
unfortunately, the public does not see all of the information

about governnent. Keeping the public informed is inportant, but
there is so nuch data that sone confusion is certain. He
stressed that, if the commssion is established solely, the
departnment still has a responsibility for its tasks. In fact,
the commission wll decide what needs to be changed and what
strategies will be used. He re-stated his suggestion to allow

the commssion to develop its goals independently from the
| egi sl ature. He cautioned against witing legislation that does
not solve the problem

9:48: 28 AM

CHAI R WLSON asked whether Representative Roses wanted to del ay
part two.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES said no. He explained that the state
al ready has the responsibility, outlined by [eleven paragraphs]
in the bill, that establishes the strategy and the coll aborative
approach to inprove health care. He drew attention to the

[ paragraphs] and stated that the conmi ssion's responsibility is
to make recomendations for <changes in the plan to help
i npl enent the plan and to ensure that the information is on the
website for consuners.

9: 50: 30 AM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -10- February 9, 2008



CHAIR WLSON pointed out that the first section of the bill is
in current statute and the only change was the addition on page
2, lines [8 through 10] that read:

(A) a statew de health plan under AS 18.09 based
on reconmendat i ons of t he Al aska Heal t h Car e
Cormmi ssi on established in AS 18. 09. 010;

9:51: 10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA stated her support for the comm ssion and
for a health information office; however, the information office

should not only be available electronically. She expects that
the conmm ssion would explore other sources of information and
work to elimnate duplicity. Representative Cissna then

expressed her support for enacting the purposes of the bill
separately.

9:52:46 AM

COWM SSI ONER JACKSON di sagreed, and stated that she expects the
information office to immediately begin to work wth other
sources of information, while the conm ssion is detern ning what
is mssing. In addition, she noted that health care
transparency is a national termin use in many states.

9:53: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER stated that he has participated in the
heal th council neetings and expressed his support for addressing
the two parts of the issue, an overall |ook and the perspective
of the consuner, in one bill. He pointed out that there is a
di sconnect between the parties in the health care situation and
expressed his interest in keeping the bill intact.

9: 54: 53 AM

CHAIR WLSON informed the commttee that HB 337 and HB 345 were
hel d over for further discussion.

9:55: 37 AM

CHAI R W LSON opened public testinmony on the first two sections
of HB 337.

9:56:17 AM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -11- February 9, 2008



JEANNI NE HI NVAN, Health Care Legal Consultant, Advanced Medica

Centers of Alaska, pointed out that there have been restrictive
CON laws in Alaska for decades and stated her support for HB
337.

9:57:13 AM

NORMAN STEPHENS, Chief Executive O ficer, Mit-Su Regional Health
Care Center, informed the conmttee that he was a participant in

the CON task force. He supported the idea of slowing the
process down and cautioned the commttee against creating the
commi ssion and rushing ahead with an information office. M.

St ephens opined that hospitals are now in conpetition to |ower
the cost of contracts and keep costs low. On the Medicare side,
cost reports are already mandated to be public information;
however, they are very conplicated and difficult to understand.
M. Stephens concluded by pointing out that statistics from
smal l er hospitals, that perform fewer operations, can not be
fairly conpared to statistics fromlarge hospitals.

9:59: 59 AM

PAULA EASLEY, Menber, Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority Board
of Directors, Departnment of Revenue, testified on behalf of the
Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority (AMHTA) and requested that
HB 337 include a representative of AWHTA on the health care
conmi ssi on. She noted that the AWHTA, in conjunction with the
DHSS, devel ops a conprehensive five year nental health plan and
advi ses the state on nental health program fundi ng that anounted
to approximately $27 mllion this year. In addition, the AWVHTA
| eads system planning in many areas related to beneficiaries.
Ms. Easley stated other goals of the AVHTA and stressed that, in
the process of its duties, it collects a significant anount of
research. This research would be invaluable to the work of the
health care conmission. Turning to the issue of the health care
information office, she advised the commttee of the new United
Way statew de referral service. Ms. Easley listed many of the
services provided via the Al aska 211 telephone nunber and
recommended that the information office establish a link to the
services provided on the phone |line, thus saving duplication and
a consi derabl e anount of noney.

10: 04: 06 AM

ROB GOULD, Chi ef  Fi nanci al Oficer; Head of Operations,
Fai rbanks Menorial Hospital and Denali Center, stated his
support for the comm ssion and opposition to the creation of the

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -12- February 9, 2008



health care information office. He opined that the information
that would be posted would be inconplete and would not provide
transparency. In addition, Alaska is a data rich state and the
DHSS al ready has rel evant information.

10: 06: 19 AM

BOB URATA, M D., Menber, Bartlett Regional Hospital Board of
Directors and the Health Care Strategies Planning Council,
stated his support for the <creation of the health care
comm ssion and the information office. He recalled that one of
the goals of the Health Care Strategies Planning Council is to
develop [a vehicle 1to0] provide information to support
consunerism in the health care system In fact, Medicare now
requires information, on the Internet, about how hospitals are
doing in certain health areas. He related the Health Care
Strategies Planning Council's hope that this information would
be expanded to include hospitals and physician's offices.
Turning to the health care comm ssion, he opined that the health
care problens in the state wll take tine to solve and
recomrended that nore stakeholders should be included to serve
on the comm ssi on.

10: 09: 46 AM

CHAIR WLSON stated her appreciation for Dr. Urata' s support of
the bill.

10: 10: 13 AM

DR. URATA opined that many hospital representatives feel that
there is an unlevel playing field. The conmm ssion can address
this problem if all parties are represented.

10:10: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked Dr. Urata to submt a list of
parties who should be included in the conm ssion.

10: 11: 21 AM

ROB BETIT, Chief Executive Oficer, Alaska State Hospital and
Nursi ng Home Association (ASHNHA), inforned the conmttee that
the nenbers of the ASHNHA support the creation of the statew de
health plan and the health care conm ssion. However, he
recommended changes in the nenbership of the conmssion to
ensure a nore bal anced representation. Al so, he expressed his

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -13- February 9, 2008



belief that the reporting provision of the health care
i nformation office should include pharnmaci es and physi ci ans.

10: 15: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked M. Betit for the charge of the
health care conmm ssi on on which he served in U ah.

MR BETIT stated that the Utah comm ssion addressed the issues

of access, insurance coverage, and cost. The conmm ssion
consisted of six public nmenbers, six legislators, and was
initially chaired by the governor. During its tenure, the

commi ssion created a road nmap of issues and staff support was
provided by an information office at the Utah departnment of
health. M. Betit related the successes of the comm ssion.

10: 16: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES further asked whether the Utah conm ssion
outlined nedical protocol and procedures for testing.

MR. BETIT answered that the commission set a policy for
physicians to follow, but the details were developed by
physi ci ans and et hi ci sts.

10: 18: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES then asked whether the protocols were
establ i shed for the state.

MR, BETIT said that protocols recognized by the physician's
community and by the national heath sciences group were enbraced
by the Utah comm ssion.

10:18: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether there should be additiona
representation by the | egislature on the comr ssion.

MR. BETIT, speaking now only as an individual, advised that,
wi t hout the governor's support, the health care comm ssion wll

not meke progress. In addition, representation by the
legislature is required to ensure support and funding for the
comm ssion's policy recomendations. He opined that the

| egi sl ature needs additional representation on the conm ssion.

10: 20: 49 AM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -14- February 9, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked for a description of the nenbers of
the Utah comm ssion.

10: 21: 22 AM

MR BETIT answered that there were two nenbers each from the
majority and mnority parties of each body, who were chosen for
their interest and commitnment to health care.

10: 22: 05 AM

JOEL d LBERTSON, Representative, Providence Health & Services
Al aska, stated his support for the commssion as well as the
information office. However, he cautioned that it is inportant
to consider the menbership of the conm ssion. He opined that,
in order to pronote health care reform in Al aska, stakehol ders,
provi ders, enployers, consuners, and governnent representatives
woul d all be needed. Also, he cautioned that oversinplification
of the information provided by the information office would not
be valuable to the consuner, especially wthout data on
physi cian's costs.

10: 25: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked M. G lbertson how large a
conmmi ssion could be and still be workabl e.

MR. G LBERTSON suggested that the conm ssion should consist of
11 to 12 nenbers.

10: 26: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked whether there is the possibility of
a [conm ssion] made of two |ayers of representation.

VR. G LBERTSON stressed t hat i ndi vi dual s representing
conflicting interests would be needed to work out real
sol utions. He stated that he was unfamliar wth a tiered

approach to the problem

10: 28: 33 AM

CHAIR WLSON closed public testinony on the first two parts of
HB 337.

[ HB 337 was hel d over.]

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 15- February 9, 2008



10: 28: 52 AM

HB 345- MEDI CAL FACI LI TY CERTI FI CATE OF NEED

10: 29: 12 AM

CHAI R WLSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 345, "An Act anmending the certificate of need
requirenents to exclude expenditures for diagnostic imaging
equi pnent in certain circunstances."”

10: 29: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE KELLY, Alaska State Legislature, disclosed
his unconpensated service to the Geater Fairbanks Conmunity
Hospital Foundation and to the Commttee on Governance for the
American Hospital Association. He, as the prine sponsor,
i ntroduced HB 345 and stated that the bill is a conprom se that
attenpts to elimnate the CON program for a portion of
busi nesses, thus is a step in the direction of nore conpetition
in the health care industry. Representative Kelly pointed out
that provisions for a [health care comri ssion] and a health care
information office are not included in HB 345, and he expressed
his concerns that both of these provisions constitute increased
government involvenent in private business. In addition, he
opined that 50 percent of the industry is not included in the
information office data.

10: 3: 55 AM

CHAIR WLSON noted that, page 6, [paragraph (2)] of HB 337,
read:

The facility cost and provider cost...

10: 34: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY opined that the requirement to disclose
costs by private sector businesses was an "additional step." He
t hen asked his staff to review HB 345.

10: 34: 34 AM

DEREK M LLER, Staff to Representative Mke Kelly, Al aska State
Legi slature, presented the sectional analysis for HB 345,
Version E, on behalf of Representative Kelly, sponsor. M.

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 16- February 9, 2008



MIller informed the commttee that Section 1 adds a cross-
reference to an additional exenption to the Certificate of Need
process in existing statute. Section 2 defines "critical access
hospital" as a small, rural, hospital that 1is financially
chal  enged given the population that it serves. Section 3 adds
an exenption that permits a person to nmake an expenditure of $1
mllion or nore for diagnostic inaging equipnent, wthout
aut hori zation under the ternms of the CON process, as long as the
equi pnent is located in a borough with a popul ati on of 60,000 or
nore, in a city that does not have a critical access hospital
and is at |east 50 percent owned by one or nore licensed
physicians who are qualified to and actually perform
interpretations of the images produced at the facility.
Finally, Section 4 provides applicability standards for health
care facilities in existence or proposed after the effective
date of the act.

10: 36: 19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  SEATON asked for an explanation of t he
requi renent of 50 percent ownership, by physicians, of the
di agnostic imaging facility.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY suggested that the percentage was chosen as
a conprom se between the opposing parti es.

10: 38: 43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  SEATON further asked for the purpose of
requiring physician ownership, if the intent of the bill is to
open conpetition.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY expl ained that physician ownership is not
prevented, but if participation is less than 50 percent by
physi cians, CON laws still apply. The intent is to encourage
conpetition, as long as the two parties are working together.

10: 40: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked whether this was a conpronise
bet ween the hospitals and the physicians.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY said that the bill was a significant
conprom se, but the dispute is not entirely between hospitals
and physicians. House Bill 345 was a solution based on what has

been done in other states that have inproved their CON | aws.

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -17- February 9, 2008



10: 42: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked for the position of the consuners
in the division between the hospitals and the doctors.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY opined that it depends on where the federa
government |eads this debate. Unlike fire, car, and life
i nsurance, the consumer is a small part of health care and
remai ns uni nforned, uninvolved, and under served. I n Anchor age
and Fairbanks, physicians are not accepting Medicare patients;
this will soon be a crisis as the nunber of seniors will double
in Al aska by 2030. Representative Kelly pointed out that all
three aspects of HB 337 would not solve the issues that HB 345
woul d sol ve by conprom se.

10: 45: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked whether HB 345 would resolve any,
or all, of the pending |awsuits.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY expressed his understanding that this bill
woul d settle from 75 percent to 90 percent of the |awsuits. He
bl amed weak regulations for the legal problems and provided
analogies to the California power system deregul ati on.
Representative Kelly predicted that a sudden change in the CON
system woul d cause a simlar situation.

10: 49: 49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA opined that one's health is 80 percent
based on personal choices and |earned habits. She acknow edged
that the CON program needs work, but expressed her concern about
the health of the hospitals that are needed to provi de energency
care. She asked how HB 345 will safeguard the health of a
hospi t al

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY observed that HB 345 was a carefully
crafted conprom se. He suggested that, if it is not passed,
this struggle wll continue. Furthernore, HB 345 is supported
by a | arge sector of the health care system

10: 53: 13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES expressed his concern that the limtation
on the cost of equipnent nay affect the quality of care.

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 18- February 9, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE KELLY agreed and pointed out that HB 345
elimnates this possibility.

10: 54: 39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES cl arified his question.

10: 54: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY confirmed that the exenptions provided by
HB 345 negate the applicability of the CON under the conditions
descri bed by Representative Roses.

10: 55: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES further asked whether the 50 percent
ownership requirenent was supported by the negotiated rule
maki ng conmitt ee.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY assured the committee that the support of
the negotiated rule making commttee was considered in the
drafting of HB 345.

10: 56: 34 AM

CHAI R WLSON announced that further testinmony would be heard on
t he ni neteenth of February, 2008.

[ HB 345 was hel d over.]

10: 57: 22 AM

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Comm ttee neeting
was adj ourned at 10:58:03 AM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -19- February 9, 2008



